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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF CONNECTICUT

SELF, INC. et al. )
Plaintiffs, )
)
v. )
) No. 3:20-cv-00252-RNC
TOWN OF WOLCOTT, CONNECTICUT, )
Defendant. )
)
) December 6, 2021
CONSENT DECREE
L. Introduction

1. In these consolidated cases, the United States, L & R Realty, Inc. (“L & R”), and
the housing provider, SELF, Inc. (“SELF”) (L & R and SELF hereinafter referred to as “Private
Plaintiffs”) allege that the Town of Wolcott, Connecticut (“Wolcott” or “Town’) discriminated
on the basis of disability in violation of the Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act
of 1968, as amended by the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 (“FHA™), 42 U.S.C. §§
3601-3631.!

2. In its Complaint, the United States alleges that the Town engaged in a pattern or
practice of discrimination on the basis of disability, and denied rights to a group of persons, in
violation of the FHA, 42 U.S.C. § 3614(a), by preventing the operation of community residences
for adults with disabilities in residential districts of the Town. The United States alleges further
that Wolcott discriminated against L & R and SELF by denying them a special use permit to
open a group home for up to thirteen (13) adults with mental health disabilities at 159 Old Bound

Line Road, a single-family home in the R-40 residential zoning district.

! As noted in paragraph 5 below, the Court consolidated the cases and directed that the Parties use the caption for the
private suit in all filings in this case. See ECF No. 35.
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3. The United States alleges that the Town’s actions, as described in its Complaint,
violated the Fair Housing Act, as follows: 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f)(1), by denying or otherwise
making dwellings unavailable because of disability; 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f)(3)(B), by refusing to
make a reasonable accommodation in rules, policies, practices, or services, when such
accommodation may have been necessary to afford persons with disabilities an equal opportunity
to use and enjoy a dwelling; and 42 U.S.C. § 3617, by interfering with and retaliating against L
& R and SELF in the exercise of, or on account of having exercised or enjoyed, or on account of
their having aided or encouraged other persons in the exercise or enjoyment of, any right granted
or protected by the FHA.

4. In their Complaint, the Private Plaintiffs allege that the Town discriminated
against them on the prohibited basis of disability and violated the Fair Housing Act, as follows:
42 U.S.C. § 3604(f)(1) by denying or otherwise making dwellings unavailable because of
disability; 42 U.S.C. § 3604(f)(2) and (3)(B) by refusing to make a reasonable accommodation in
rules, policies, practices, or services, when such accommodation may have been necessary to
afford persons with disabilities an equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling; and 42 U.S.C.
§ 3617 by interfering with and retaliating against L & R and SELF in the exercise of, or on
account of having exercised or enjoyed, or on account of their having aided or encouraged other
persons in the exercise or enjoyment of, any right granted or protected by the FHA. Private
Plaintiffs also allege that the Town’s actions violate Title II of the Americans with Disabilities
Act (“ADA”), 42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 et seq.; and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (the
“Rehabilitation Act”), 29 U.S.C. § 794.

5. On January 14, 2021, the Court consolidated the United States’ action, United

States v. Town of Wolcott, civil action no. 3:20-cv-01814, with the Private Plaintiffs’ action, with
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the lead action to be SELF, Inc., et al. v. Town of Wolcott, as referenced in this caption.

6. The Town denies that it violated the FHA, ADA, Rehabilitation Act, or any other
federal, state, or local law or ordinance in denying a special use permit to allow SELF to operate
a thirteen-person group home for adults with disabilities located at 159 Old Bound Line Road in
Wolcott, Connecticut, and further denies that any provision of its Zoning Regulations
discriminates against persons with disabilities. The parties acknowledge that by executing this
Consent Decree, the Town does not admit that it discriminated against L & R, SELF, or persons
with disabilities, and expressly denies any liability to them. Nothing herein shall be construed in
any manner as an admission of guilt, liability, or wrongdoing.

7. The United States, the Private Plaintiffs, and the Town (collectively, the
“Parties”) have voluntarily agreed to resolve the United States’ claims and the Private Plaintiffs’
claims against the Town by executing this Consent Decree, as indicated by the signatures below.

Therefore, it is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED as follows:
II. Jurisdiction

8. The Court has jurisdiction over this action, and may grant the relief sought herein,
under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 and 1345, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3614, 12132, and 12133, and 28 U.S.C. §§
2201 and 2202.

III.  General Injunction and Nondiscrimination Provision

0. The Town, its agents, employees, successors, and all persons in active concert or
participation with it, shall not:

a. Discriminate in the sale or rental, or otherwise make unavailable or deny, a
dwelling to any person because of a disability, in violation of the FHA;

b. Discriminate in the terms, conditions, or privileges of sale or rental of a
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dwelling, or in the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, on
the basis of disability, in violation of the FHA;
C. Adopt, maintain, enforce, or implement any zoning or land use laws,
regulations, policies, procedures or practices that discriminate on the basis of
disability, in violation of the FHA;
d. Refuse to make reasonable accommodation in rules, policies, practices or
services when such accommodation may be necessary to afford a person or
persons with disabilities an equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling, in
violation of the FHA; or,
e. Interfere with or retaliate against persons with disabilities in the exercise
or enjoyment of, or on account of such persons having exercised or enjoyed, or on
account of having aided or encouraged any other person in the exercise or
enjoyment of, any right granted or protected by the FHA.

IV.  Specific Injunctive Relief

10. Immediately upon entry of this Decree, the Town shall cease enforcing the
definition of “Community Residence” contained in its Zoning Regulations, Zoning Reg. 3.9, and
Zoning Reg. 32.2.6.

I1. The Town shall enact amendments to its Zoning Regulations to revise the
definition of “Family” and “Community Residence,” as well as Schedule A of the Zoning
Regulations and Zoning Reg. 32.2.6, such that group homes, defined to be housing for unrelated
people with disabilities who live together, with or without staff, in a single dwelling unit and
maintain a common household, shall be permitted uses in all residential zones. In the newly

enacted zoning regulation, no size limitations shall be imposed on such homes other than those
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that the Town applies to families of similar size.

12. The Town shall submit the proposed amendments referenced in paragraph 11
above to the United States for approval within sixty (60) days of the execution by the Parties of
this Decree.

13. The Town agrees to follow its local procedures, along with state and federal laws,
to enact the proposed amendments referenced in paragraph 11 above, and to initiate such
enactment within thirty (30) days after the United States’ approval.

14. The Town shall not otherwise modify its Zoning Regulations or any other
ordinance in a manner such that the modification narrows, reduces, or limits the rights of persons
with disabilities to reside in a residence of their choosing within areas that individuals with other
disabilities or without disabilities are permitted to reside within the Town.

15. Within two (2) business days of the Parties’ execution of this Decree, the Town
shall grant a zoning permit to L & R to permit the use of a community residence for up to 13
residents at 159 Old Bound Line Road. In granting the permit, the Town shall ensure that the
permit has all the incidents and features of a zoning permit, including, but not limited to, running
with the land, and that any successor community residence of similar size at the same location
shall be grandfathered in with regard to such use. Along with the issuance of a zoning permit,
the Town shall provide L & R and SELF with a letter on its letterhead stating that the above-
referenced property is permitted as a reasonable accommodation to the Town’s Zoning
Regulations. A copy of such letter is attached hereto as Appendix A.

16. The Town shall grant a certificate of occupancy to L & R for SELF to lease, use
and operate a community residence for up to 13 individuals with disabilities at 159 Old Bound

Line Road provided that L & R complies with all applicable codes and any other standard
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requirements for certificate of occupancy. L & R may seek a modification of the building or fire
code requirements from the State Building Official or State Fire Marshal, and if such
modification is allowed by a State official, the Town will apply the particular code
requirement(s) as modified. The Town agrees that an inspection for a certificate of occupancy
will occur within five (5) business days of receiving a request for such inspection from L & R
and notification from L & R that all requirements for the issuance of a certificate of occupancy
have been met at 159 Old Bound Line Road.
17. The Town agrees that it will not take any action that interferes with the lawful
operation of a community residence at 159 Old Bound Line Road.
V. Reasonable Accommodation Policy
18. The Town shall enact a new zoning regulation that contains a Reasonable
Accommodation Policy (“Reasonable Accommodation Policy” or “Policy”) to provide a
process for making requests for reasonable accommodation to land use and zoning decisions,
ordinances, and procedures regulating the siting, funding, development and use of housing for
people with disabilities. The purpose of such Policy is to ensure equal housing opportunities
for people with disabilities. The Town agrees that it must incur reasonable costs and take
affirmative steps to accommodate persons with disabilities so long as the accommodations
sought do not pose an undue hardship or a substantial burden.
19. The Town’s Reasonable Accommodation Policy shall contain, at a minimum,
the following components:
a. Requests for reasonable accommodation shall be filed with a designated Zoning
official in the Zoning Department, who shall issue a written decision within thirty (30)
days of the date of the request and may grant the reasonable accommodation request

with or without modification or deny the request.

b. The designated Zoning official shall consider narrowly defined criteria when
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deciding whether a requested accommodation is reasonable, consistent with the
FHA, such as: (i) is the housing, which is the subject of the request for reasonable
accommodation, to be used by an individual or group of individuals protected under
the FHA; (ii) is the request for accommodation necessary to make specific housing
available to an individual or group of individuals protected under the FHA; and (ii1)
whether the requested accommodation does not pose an undue hardship or a
substantial burden on the municipality.

c. The designated Zoning official shall not inquire into the nature or severity of a
person’s disability, or require confidential medical records or information. However,
the designated Zoning official may request reliable disability-related information that
(1) is necessary to verify that the person meets the Fair Housing Act and/or
Americans with Disability Act’s definition of “disability,” (2) describes the needed
accommodation, and (3) shows the relationship between the person’s disability and
the need for the requested accommodation. Depending on the individual’s
circumstances, information verifying that the person meets the Acts’ definition of
disability can usually be provided by the individual, but also may come from a
doctor or medical professional, a peer support group, a non-medical service agency,
or a reliable third party who is in a position to know about the individual’s disability.
Once the designated Zoning official has established that the applicant meets the
definition of a person with a disability, the official should seek only the information
necessary to evaluate if the request is needed because of a disability.

d. The designated Zoning official’s written decision on the request for reasonable
accommodation shall explain in detail the basis of the decision, including the

designated Zoning official’s findings on the criteria set forth in (b) above.

e. All written decisions shall give notice of the right to appeal and to request reasonable
accommodation in the appeals process.

f.  The person or entity requesting an accommodation may file an action at any time in

court to challenge the Town’s denial of a reasonable accommodation under the FHA,

ADA, or any other applicable federal, state or local law. Such persons or entities

shall not, solely by virtue of having requested an accommodation under this Policy,

be barred, estopped or otherwise limited in bringing an action in court against the

Town to challenge the denial of a reasonable accommodation.

20. The Town shall submit to the United States for approval the new zoning

regulation that contains the Reasonable Accommodation Policy referenced in paragraph 18
within sixty (60) days of the execution by the Parties of this Consent Decree.

21. The Town agrees to follow its local procedures, along with state and federal laws,

to enact the proposed new zoning regulation containing a Reasonable Accommodation Policy,
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referenced in paragraph 18 above, and shall initiate the enactment within thirty (30) days after
the Unites States’ approval.

22. Within ten (10) days of the enactment of the new zoning regulation containing a
Reasonable Accommodation Policy, and throughout the term of this Consent Decree, the Town
shall post and publicly display the regulation containing the Town’s Reasonable Accommodation
Policy on its website; at all counters where an application is made for a permit, license, or other
authorization for the siting, funding, development, or use of housing; at the offices of the Town
in which legal notices, announcements, or vacancies are posted; and where enforcement of
zoning and land use regulations are made. In addition, the Town shall revise its zoning and land
use applications to reference and include the regulation setting forth its Reasonable
Accommodation Policy.

23. For the duration of this Consent Decree, the Town shall maintain records of all
oral and written requests for reasonable accommodation from the Town’s zoning and land use
requirements that it receives, and the Town’s responses thereto. Specifically, the Town’s records
shall include: (i) the name, address, telephone number, and email address of the person making
the request; (ii) the street address of the subject property or proposed housing; (iii) the date on
which the request was received; (iv) any information provided to the Town, oral or written,
regarding the request; (v) the status of the request, including whether the request was granted or
denied and any decision on appeal; (vi) the nature of the request; (vii) the final written decision
regarding the request; and (viii) complete copies of any minutes or video or audio recordings
from all meetings or hearings discussing the zoning request or application.

24, The Town shall not impose any fees or costs for requesting a reasonable

accommodation, or otherwise retaliate against any person who has exercised his or her rights
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under the Fair Housing Act to make one or more reasonable accommodation requests.

25.  Nothing in this Consent Decree shall be interpreted to require persons with
disabilities or providers of housing for persons with disabilities acting or operating in accordance
with applicable zoning, licensing, and/or land use laws and practices, to seek permission from

the Town to begin or continue such action or operation.

VI.  Compliance Officer

26. Within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Decree, the Town shall designate an
employee or official of the Town as the Fair Housing Compliance Officer (“FHCO”). The FHCO
shall have the responsibility to receive complaints of alleged housing discrimination, including
discrimination involving housing for persons with disabilities. The designated person shall serve
as a resource to the Town and its officers, elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents
on fair housing and disability rights, and coordinate the Town’s compliance with this Decree.
The FHCO must be a person who has received training in the FHA consistent with the training
required of other officials and employees under this Consent Decree set forth in Section VII.

27. The FHCO shall be designated to receive and review all complaints of housing
discrimination made against the Town or any officer, elected or appointed official, employee, or
agent of the Town. If complaints are made verbally, the FHCO shall make a contemporaneous
written record of those complaints.

28. The FHCO shall maintain copies of this Decree, the Reasonable Accommodation
Policy, and the HUD Complaint form and HUD pamphlet entitled “Are you a victim of housing
discrimination?” (HUD official form 903.1), and make these materials freely available to anyone
on the Town’s website and, upon request, in paper form, including to all persons making fair

housing complaints to the FHCO.
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29. During the term of this Decree, the FHCO shall report to the Town every three (3)
months on activities taken in compliance with this Decree.

30. The Town shall notify the United States in writing of the name, address,
telephone number, title, and qualifications of the person designated to serve as FHCO no later
than thirty (30) days after the effective date of this Consent Decree. Should the designation of the
FHCO change during the term of this Consent Decree, the Town shall, within ten (10) days of
such change, notify the United States in writing of the name of the new FHCO and his or her
contact information.

VII. Fair Housing Training

31. Within one hundred-twenty (120) days of the entry of this Decree, and at least
annually thereafter during the duration of this Consent Decree, the Town shall provide training(s)
on the requirements of the Decree, the FHA (in particular, those provisions that relate to
disability discrimination and zoning), and the ADA (in particular, the ADA’s application to
zoning). The training(s) shall be provided to and attendance shall be mandatory of all Town
officers, elected and appointed officials, and employees who have duties related to the planning,
zoning, permitting, construction, code enforcement, or occupancy of residential housing,
including, but not limited to: professional staff of the Zoning Department; the Zoning
Enforcement Officer; the Mayor; members of the Town Council; members of the Planning and
Zoning Commission; and members of the Zoning Board of Appeals. The training(s) should be
conducted in accordance with the following:

a. The training requirements may be met by viewing interactive video
training modules, live webinars, or live training presentations, subject to the

approval of the United States. The trainer(s) shall not be connected to the Town or

10
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its officers, elected or appointed officials, employees, agents or counsel. No fewer
than sixty (60) days before the date of each training under this paragraph, the
Town shall submit to counsel for the United States the name of the person(s) or
organization(s) proposed to provide the training, together with copies of the
professional qualifications of such person(s) or organization(s), and copies of all
materials to be used in the training. The United States will respond with any
objections to the trainer or training materials at least thirty (30) days prior to any
proposed training session.
b. Any expenses associated with the training(s) shall be borne by the Town.
C. The training(s) shall be video-recorded and the Town shall maintain
copies of the written materials provided for each training. Hard copies are not
required and digital archives of the materials shall be acceptable.
d. Each newly elected, appointed, or hired individual covered by this
paragraph shall first receive training within sixty (60) days after the date he or she
enters office or commences service or employment, either (1) by attending the
next regularly scheduled live training, if it occurs within the sixty (60) day period,
or (2) by viewing the video recording of the most recent live training and
receiving copies of any written materials provided for that training.
e. The Town shall provide a copy of this Consent Decree to each person
required to receive the training(s).
32. The Town shall require each trainee to execute a certification confirming: (i) the
individual’s attendance; (i1) the date of the training; and (iii) the individual’s receipt and

comprehension of the Decree. The Certification of Training and Receipt of Consent Decree

11



Case 3:20-cv-00252-RNC Document 89-1 Filed 12/06/21 Page 12 of 23

appears as Appendix B to this Decree. All trainees shall complete the certifications at the
conclusion of each training session.
VIII. Reporting and Recordkeeping

33. Within one hundred thirty (130) days of the entry of this Decree, the Town shall
submit all executed copies of the Certification of Training and Receipt of Consent Decree
described in paragraph 32.2

34. The Town shall prepare compliance reports twice annually for the term of this
Decree detailing all actions it has taken to fulfill its obligations under this Decree since the last
compliance report.

35. The Town shall submit its first report to the United States within six (6) months of
entry of the Decree, and subsequent reports every six (6) months thereafter for the duration of the
Decree, except that the final report shall be delivered to the United States no less than sixty (60)
days prior to the expiration of this Decree.

36. The Town shall include in the compliance reports, at a minimum, the following
information:

a. The name, address, and title of the employee or official serving as the Fair
Housing Compliance Officer referred to in Section VI;

b. A summary of each zoning or land-use request or application, including

2 Unless directed otherwise by the United States, the Town shall send all documents, notices, and other
communications required by the Decree to be sent to the United States to counsel of record via email and via
regular U.S. mail to:

Chief,

Housing and Civil Enforcement Section, Civil Rights Division
United States Department of Justice

4 Constitution Square

150 M Street, NE Washington, DC 20002

Attn: DJ# 175-14-173

12



Case 3:20-cv-00252-RNC Document 89-1 Filed 12/06/21 Page 13 of 23

requests for reasonable accommodations, related to housing for persons with
disabilities, indicating: (i) the date of the application; (i1) the applicant’s name;
(1i1) the applicant’s current street address; (iv) the street address of the subject
property or proposed housing; (v) the Town’s decision(s) regarding the matter,
including any decision on appeal; (vi) the reasons for each decision, including a
summary of the facts upon which the Town relied; and (vii) complete copies of
any minutes and audio or video recordings from all meetings or hearings
discussing the zoning request or application;
C. Copies of any Certifications of Training and Receipt of Consent Decree
(Appendix B) described in paragraph 32, above, that are signed after the
preceding compliance report was issued;
d. Copies of any materials that have been previously submitted to counsel for
the United States under this Decree if such materials have been substantially
altered or amended since they were last submitted to counsel for the United
States; and
€. Any complaints of housing discrimination or disability discrimination by
the Town, either received by the FHCO pursuant to paragraph 26 or by another
Town employee or official, including a copy of the complaint, any documents
filed with the complaint, and any written response to the complaint by the Town.
If the complaint has not been resolved, the Town shall report any efforts the Town
undertook or plans to undertake to resolve the complaint.

37. The Town shall send the United States and the Private Plaintiffs copies of the

enacted amendments to the Zoning Regulations required by paragraphs 11 and 18 within ten (10)

13
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days of such actions.

38. The Town shall provide copies of the zoning permit and the letter required by
paragraph 15 to the United States and the Private Plaintiffs within two (2) days of the execution
of this Consent Decree.

39. For the duration of this Decree, the Town shall retain all records relating to any
provision of this Decree. Counsel for the United States and the Private Plaintiffs shall have the
opportunity to inspect and copy any such records after giving reasonable notice to counsel for the
Town.

IX. Monetary Payments

40. Within thirty (30) days of the entry of this Decree, the Town shall deliver to
counsel for L & R and SELF a check made payable to the Fair Housing Center as trustee for L &
R Realty and SELF, Inc. in the amount of three hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($350,000)
for damages, fees and costs. L & R and SELF are aggrieved persons under the FHA, 42 U.S.C.
§8§ 3602(i), 3613(c), and 3614(d)(1)(B). Mr. Ronald Gambino, member, on behalf of L & R, and
Ms. Kimberly Taglia, CEO, on behalf of SELF, will execute a limited release-of-claims form, in
the form of Appendix C, signifying that the payment constitutes full settlement of any claims
relating to the subject matter of this action. Counsel for L & R and SELF shall obtain the signed
release forms and provide them to counsel for the Town within five (5) days after receipt of the
check.

41. The Town shall make a payment to the United States Treasury under 42 U.S.C. §
3614(d)(1)(C) of the Fair Housing Act of ten thousand dollars ($10,000). Such payment shall be
in the form of electronic fund transfers pursuant to written instructions to be provided by the

United States. The payment shall be made in two installments, in accordance with the following

14
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schedule: (a) five thousand dollars ($5000) to be paid fifteen (15) days after entry of this Consent
Decree; and (b) five thousand dollars ($5000) to be paid on or before one year after the entry of
this Consent Decree. The Town shall provide fifteen (15) days’ notice to the United States and
obtain written instructions before effectuating the second payment.

42, In the event that the Town, its agents, or its employees engage in conduct that
violates the FHA, such violation(s) shall constitute a “subsequent violation” under 42 U.S.C. §
3614(d)(1)(O)(i1).

X. Duration of Decree

43, This Decree shall remain in effect for a period of three (3) years after its entry.
The Court shall retain jurisdiction over the action for the duration of the Decree for the purpose
of enforcing its provisions and terms. The United States may move the Court to extend the
duration of the Decree in the interests of justice.

44, Any time limits for performance imposed by this Decree may be extended by
mutual written agreement of the Parties. The other provisions of this Decree may be modified
only by motion to the Court.

XI.  Enforcement

45. The Parties shall endeavor in good faith to resolve informally any differences
regarding interpretation of and compliance with this Decree prior to bringing such matters to the
Court for resolution. However, in the event of a failure by the Town to perform in a timely
manner any act required by this Decree, or otherwise to act in conformance with any provision
thereof, the United States and/or the Private Plaintiffs may move this Court to impose any
remedy authorized by law or equity. Remedies include, but are not limited to, findings of

contempt, an order requiring performance of such act or deeming such act to have been

15
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performed, and an award of any damages, costs, and reasonable attorneys’ fees that may have
been occasioned by the violation or failure to perform.
XII.  Costs of Litigation

46. Except as otherwise indicated, the Parties will bear their own costs and legal fees

associated with this litigation.
XIII. Termination of Litigation Hold

47. The Parties agree that, as of the date of the entry of this Consent Decree, litigation
is not “reasonably foreseeable” concerning the matters described above. To the extent that either
party previously implemented a litigation hold to preserve documents, electronically stored
information (ESI), or things related to the matters described above, the party is no longer
required to maintain such litigation hold. Nothing in this paragraph relieves either party of any

other obligations imposed by this Consent Decree.

IT IS SO ORDERED:

This day of ,2021.

United States District Judge
The Honorable Judge Robert N. Chatigny

16
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Respectfully submitted,

For Plaintiff United States of America:

LEONARD C BOYLE
Acting United States Attorney
District of Connecticut

Wiklsizin WL Brocwsn

WILLIAM M. BROWN, JR.%;O&B)
Assistant United States Attorney
United States Attorney’s Office
District of Connecticut

157 Church Street, 25" Floor

New Haven, CT 06437

Phone: (203) 821-3700

Facsimile: (203) 773-5373
William.brown2@usdoj.gov

For Plaintiffs SELF, Inc. and L&R Realty, Inc.:

%\L

Greg Kirschner (ct26888)

The Connecticut Fair Housing Center
60 Popieluszko Court

Hartford, CT 06106

Phone: (860) 263-0724

Facsimile: (860) 247-4236
gkirschner@ctfairhousing.org

el Gt

L&R Realty by Ronald Gambino, Member
24 Andrews Rd, Wolcott, CT 06716
(203) 879-3021
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KRISTEN CLARKE
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division

SAMEENA SHINA MAJEED

(_/% N /Qt A—S

R. TAMAR HAGLER

Deputy Chief

BETH PEPPER (phv20089)
KATHERINE A. RAIMONDO (phv10469)
Trial Attorney

United States Department of Justice
Civil Rights Division

Four Constitution Square

150 M Street NE

Washington, DC 20530

Phone: (202) 305-1987

Facsimile: (202) 514-1116
Katherine.Raimondo@usdoj.gov
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Ky

SELF, INC. by Kimberly Taglia, CEO
47 Pierpont St, Waterbury, CT 06708
(203) 759-2074

For Defendant Town of Wolcott:

/s/ Thomas R. Gerarde
Thomas R. Gerarde (ct05640)
Howd & Ludorf, LLC 65
Wethersfield Avenue
Hartford, CT 06114-11921
Phone: (860) 249-1361

Fax: (860) 249-7665
tgerarde(@hl-law.com

Town of Wolcott

By /s/ Thomas Dunn
Thomas Dunn
Mayor

Duly Authorized

10 Kenea Avenue
Wolcott, CT 06716

Wolcott Planning & Zoning Commission

By /s/ Angelo Mastrofrancesco
Angelo Mastrofrancesco
Chairman

Duly Authorized
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APPENDIX A
LETTER FROM ZONING OFFICIAL TO L & R REALTY AND SELF

L&R Realty
24 Andrews Rd.
Wolcott, CT 06716

SELF, INC.
47 Pierpont St.
Waterbury, CT 06708

To whom it may concern:

This is to inform you that I have issued a Zoning Permit for operation of a community residence

for up to 13 residents with disabilities at 159 Old Bound Line Road in the Town of Wolcott,

Connecticut, as a reasonable accommodation under the Fair Housing Act.

Sincerely,

Dave Kalinowski, Zoning Enforcement Officer
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APPENDIX B
CERTIFICATION OF TRAINING AND RECEIPT OF CONSENT DECREE

I attended training on the federal Fair Housing Act and Title II of the Americans with
Disabilities Act. [ have had all of my questions concerning these topics answered to my
satisfaction.

I watched a videotape of the complete training session provided pursuant to the Consent
Decree referenced below. I have had all of my questions concerning these topics answered to
my satisfaction.

I have also received a copy of the Consent Decree entered in SELF and United States v.
Wolcott, Case No. 3:20-cv-00252, filed in the United States District Court for the District of
Connecticut. I have read and understand these documents and have had my questions about
these documents answered. I understand my legal responsibilities under the Consent Decree and
will comply with those responsibilities. I further understand that the Court may impose
sanctions on the Town of Wolcott if I violate any provision of this Decree.

Date

Employee/Agent Name (Print)

Employee/ Agent Signature
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APPENDIX C
FULL AND FINAL RELEASE OF CLAIMS
RELEASE AND SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

1. In consideration for the parties’ agreement to the terms of the Consent Decree they
executed in the case of SELF and United States v. Wolcott, Case No. 3:20-cv-00252, filed in the
United States District Court for the District of Connecticut as approved by the United States
District Court for the District of Connecticut, and in consideration for the payment of THREE
HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND Dollars ($350,000) to be paid by the insurer of the Town of
Wolcott (“the Town”), S.E.L.F., INC. and L & R REALTY (hereinafter referred to as
“Releasors™) hereby release and forever discharge the Town and all of its departments, boards,
councils, commissions, committees, employees, elected officials, and its insurers, excess insurers
and reinsurers, including Connecticut Interlocal Risk Management Agency, and its affiliates, and
all of its employees, agents, officers, directors and assigns, all of whom are collectively referred
to as the “Releasees,” of and from all debts, obligations, reckonings, promises, covenants,
agreements, contracts, endorsements, bonds, specialties, controversies, suits, actions, causes of
action, trespasses, variances, judgments, extents, executions, damages, claims or demands, in law
or in equity, against the said Releasees, their heirs, next of kin, executors, administrators, and
assigns, their present and former agents, servants, employees, officials and attorneys, and/or
predecessor and/or successor and/or parent and/or subsidiary and/or affiliated legal entities, their
insurers, excess insurers, and reinsurers, which Releasors had, now have or hereafter may have,
from the beginning of time through the date this Release and Settlement Agreement is executed
by Releasors, including any and all known and unknown personal injuries, losses or damages,

administrative remedies and including claims for attorney’s fees, and claims for any and all
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reimbursements of any kind, including claims for administrative or injunctive relief, which
Releasors may have, based on a tort, contract, civil rights, statutory, indemnification or other
theory of liability, including liability under fair housing laws whether state or federal, from the
beginning of time through the date this Release and Settlement Agreement is executed by
Releasors limited to all claims that were brought or could have been brought arising from the
events described in a lawsuit entitled SELF and United States v. Wolcott, Docket No. 3:20-cv-
00252.

2. The Releasors and Releasees understand and agree that this Release shall not,
under any circumstances, be deemed to prohibit the Releasors or any other person or entity from
continuing to take any actions with regard to any property other than 159 Old Bound Line Rd., or
any business than that associated with 159 Old Bound Line Rd. that the Releasors may have in or
with the Town.

3. The Releasors acknowledge that they have read this document with care, and are
signing this document voluntarily and freely without duress.

4. It is further understood and agreed that the payment of the above sum by the
insurer for the Town of Wolcott is for the compromise of a disputed claim and is not in any way
to be construed as an admission of liability on the part of any of the Releasees, all of whom
hereby expressly deny liability; and that each side is responsible for their own costs and fees.

5. Releasors, in further consideration of the settlement, represent that there are no
outstanding liens, rights of reimbursement or rights of subrogation affecting their ability to settle
these claims, or, if any such liens or rights exist, that they will be the sole responsibility of
Releasors who shall pay the holders of such liens or rights out of the proceeds of this settlement.

6. The Releasors agree that this Settlement shall be final and binding.
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YOU ARE MAKING A FINAL SETTLEMENT.
THIS IS A RELEASE. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY
BEFORE SIGNING.
RELEASOR, L & R Realty, LLC

By

RELEASOR SELF, Inc.

By
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